

# **AGREEMENT**

between

# **BOARD OF TRUSTEES**

of

# **CAMDEN COUNTY COLLEGE**

and

# ASSOCIATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2016

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION	
ARTICLE 2 - ASSOCIATION AND RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 3 - CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT	5
A. Employment	5
B. Overload	6
C. Attendance at College Functions	6
D. Transfer	6
E. College Closings	7
F. Field Trips	7
G. Job Reclassifications	7
H. Vacancies	8
I. New Positions	8
J. Acting Positions	8
K. Sexual/Racial Harassment	9
L. Reduction in Force	9
M. Support Staff Selection	9
ARTICLE 4 -ADMINISTRATIVE BENEFITS	10
A. Paid Leaves of Absence	
B. Unpaid Leaves of Absence	13
C. Insurance Programs	
D. Disability	18
E. Wellness Program	
F. Human Resource Development	18
G. Medical Flexible Spending Account	19
H. Domestic Partners	
I. Camden Campus Parking	20
ARTICLE 5 -GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTS AND DISMISSALS	23
A. Contracts	23
B. Discharge Procedure	24
ARTICLE 7 - PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION	25
A. Salary Payment	25
B. Summer and Evening Session Salaries	25
C. Overload and Part-Time Compensation	25
D. Length of Service	
ARTICLE 8 – EVALUATIONS	
ARTICLE 9 - PERSONNEL FILES	27
ARTICLE 10 - SALARY ADJUSTMENT/MERIT PROCESS	28
A. Salary Adjustment	
B. Merit	29
ARTICLE 11 - MISCELLANEOUS	30
ARTICLE 12 - COMPENSATION	
ARTICLE 13 - SALARY SCHEDULE	
ARTICLE 14 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT	

APPENDICES		39
	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FORM	
	COVER SHEET	
	LETTER OF INTENT TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION	

#### AGREEMENT BETWEEN

The Board of Trustees of Camden County College operating under provision of Public Laws of 1968, Chapter 303 of the State of New Jersey as amended by Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974 of the State of New Jersey,

#### AND

The Association of Administrative Personnel of Camden County College.

This Agreement entered into by and between the Camden County College, hereinafter called the Board, and the Camden County College Administrative Personnel Association, hereinafter called the Association.

#### WITNESSETH:

Whereas, the Board and the Association recognize and declare that providing quality higher education for the students of this College is their mutual aim and that the character of such education depends upon the quality and morale of the College administration; and,

Whereas, the members of the Association are particularly qualified to assist in the development of policies in the areas of their competence for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board of Trustees through the Office of the President; and,

Whereas, the Board has a statutory obligation, pursuant to Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, to negotiate with the Association as the Representative of the College administration; and,

Whereas, the parties have reached certain understandings which they desire to confirm in this Agreement.

In consideration of the following mutual covenants, it is hereby agreed as follows:

#### **ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION**

- A. The Board hereby recognizes the Association of Administrative Personnel of Camden County College as the exclusive negotiating representative as defined in New Jersey Public Law of 1974, Chapter 123, for full-time administrative positions employed by the Board. The Camden County College Administrative Association Unit is comprised of all full-time professional employees employed by the Board of Trustees in administrative and technical positions. A list of these employees is included in Article 12 of this Agreement Compensation.
- B. Any other position with comparable job responsibilities created during the life of the contract will be added to the bargaining unit contingent upon the mutual agreement of the College and the Association.
- C. The Board agrees not to negotiate with any unit member or with any organization representing same other than the Association for the duration of the Agreement.
- D. New and Non-Members of the Association
  - 1. The Office of Human Resources and Labor Relations will promptly notify the President of the Association and the Membership Chairperson of all new hires, transfers and terminations within the unit.
  - 2. The Human Resources Office will distribute a contract, including an introductory letter from the Association President, to all new hires.
  - 3. Credit for previous military service shall be computed in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:29-11.
- E. Agency Shop Provision for Non-Members

Upon written notification from the Association President, the College will deduct from non-association employee(s) represented by this bargaining unit, a representation fee to be determined annually.

It is agreed by the parties to this Agreement that the Board shall have no other obligation or liability, financial or otherwise (other than set forth herein) because of actions arising out of the understandings expressed in the language of the Article. It is further understood that once the funds deducted are remitted to the Association, the disposition of such funds thereafter shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of the Association.

The Association Treasurer will determine the amount of the dues to be paid by payroll deduction. The Association shall indemnify, defend and save the College harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the College in reliance upon deduction authorization forms submitted.

F. All references to Association members shall apply to all members of the bargaining unit.

## **ARTICLE 2 - ASSOCIATION AND RIGHTS**

- A. Pursuant to Public Laws of 1974, Chapter 123 of the State of New Jersey, the Board hereby agrees that Unit members shall have the right freely to organize, join and support the Association for the purpose of engaging in collective negotiation over grievances, terms and conditions of employment activities for mutual aid and protection. As a duly appointed body exercising powers granted under the laws of the State of New Jersey, the Board undertakes and agrees that it will not directly or indirectly deprive, discourage, coerce or harass any Association member in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by the Act or other laws of New Jersey or the Constitutions of New Jersey and of the United States, that it will not discriminate against any Unit member with respect to hours, wages or any terms or conditions of employment by reason of his membership in the Association, his participation in any activities of the Association or collective negotiations with the Board or his institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement.
- B. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict to any Unit member, rights he may have under the General School laws of the State of New Jersey, or other applicable laws and regulations. The rights granted to Association members hereunder shall be deemed to be in addition to those provided elsewhere.
- C. Duly authorized representatives of the Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on College property at all reasonable times. Reasonable time shall be defined as that period which does not interfere with the operation of the College or the performance of their regular duties.
- D. The Association shall have the right to use College facilities and office equipment, including typewriters, mimeographing machines, other duplicating equipment, calculating machines, and all types of audio-visual equipment at all reasonable times, when such equipment is not otherwise in use. Payments shall be made for any expendable supplies used for Association purposes and the Association shall be liable for damages to any equipment used for said purposes. College secretaries shall not be used for Association business during the normal working hours.
- E. The Association shall have the right to post notices of its activities and related matters of the Association. The Association may use the College mail service and College mail boxes for communications to its membership.
- F. Unit members shall be entitled to full rights of citizenship and no religious or political activities of any member or the lack thereof shall be grounds for any discipline or discrimination with respect to the employment of such member. The private and personal life of any Association member, excluding a conviction for the commission of a felony, is not within the appropriate concern or attention of the Board.
- G. The provisions of this Agreement and the wages, hours, terms and conditions of employment shall be applied in a manner which is not arbitrary, capricious or discriminatory with regard to race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, sex or marital status.

- H. The President of the College shall meet once a month with the President or his designee of the Association to discuss and review matters of common concern.
- I. The Association members retain a shared responsibility for the governance of the College together with the Trustees, President, Faculty and students.

## **ARTICLE 3 - CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT**

## A. Employment

Unit members are responsible for the completion of all tasks assigned to them and are evaluated accordingly. While the normal work hours are 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. with one (1) hour for lunch and the normal work week is thirty-five (35) hours. (The College will observe a four (4) day work week for no fewer than ten (10) weeks during the summer. Employees shall work eight-and-one-half (8.5) hours per day, thirty-four (34) hours each work week, generally 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. with a thirty-minute lunch. During the four (4) day work week, employees may elect to lengthen their work day in order to have a forty-five (45) minute or sixty (60) minute lunch with supervisory approval. Employees who were hired contingent on working five days during the summer shall continue to do so.) It is recognized that Unit members are required to perform services that may be beyond that which would normally be accomplished within the usual work week. Within the context of a five-day work week and a seven-hour work day, professional staff may, with the approval of the appropriate Dean, adopt flexible work hours.

As deemed necessary by the College President, administrative staff may be assigned starting and ending hours that vary from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., but such hours shall not regularly exceed seven per day and thirty-five per week, excluding a daily lunch period of one (1) hour. Employees shall receive at least thirty (30) calendar days notice of any change in their working hours, unless the employee and the supervisor agree to less notice. If more than one person occupies the identical position, and fewer than all incumbents are needed to work the modified shift hours, the College will ask for volunteers before making an involuntary assignment. The final assignment to such positions is the prerogative of the President. If the change is greater than two (2) hours before or after the regular work day hours, the Association can negotiate additional compensation for affected employees.

Unit members who are defined as non-exempt in accordance with the federal Fair Labor Standards Act, shall earn payment or compensatory time on an hour for one and one-half hour basis for hours worked beyond 35 hours per week, provided their supervisor authorized such overtime. Such payment will be in time or money as mutually agreed upon by the employee and their supervisor. Compensatory time must be used within ninety (90) days from the date it was earned.

Exempt employees who are required to work significantly more than 35 hours per week during events such as registration may accrue compensatory time on an hour for hour basis up to a maximum of 70 hours per fiscal year. Within the context of a professional relationship, supervisors shall permit employees who work occasional overtime to have greater flexibility in arranging their daily work schedule.

Approval for use of compensatory time will be at a time mutually convenient for the unit member and the immediate supervisor.

College employees who work for an externally funded program which deals with or directly serves county and/or Social Service Agencies and whose work day schedule differs from that of the College will be bound by the work day schedule of the County or Social Service Agency they serve.

Association members will disclose to their immediate supervisor any offers of additional employment including employment at Camden County College, prior to the employee's acceptance of such additional employment. Providing the proposed employment is not a conflict of interest, the Association member retains the option to accept or reject the employment offer.

## B. Overload

Qualified Association members whose background and experience, as determined by the Dean of the Academic Discipline, and the President of the College, qualify them for teaching at the junior college level shall be given consideration for overload teaching. Such qualifications necessary to teach the course will be stated in writing, and will be available to Association members upon request from the appropriate Dean's office. The application to teach an overload during normal working hours must include the written approval of the immediate supervisor. Overload positions shall be assigned by the Dean of the Academic Discipline/Program subject to the approval of the College President. An Association member may agree to accept a maximum of two (2) overloads of three (3) credits each, or two (2) overloads of four (4) credits each, or three (3) overloads of two (2) credits each, per semester or summer session. Voluntary overloads shall be at the discretion of the College and payment shall be at the prevailing rate for the Faculty Association.

# C. Attendance at College Functions

Association members attending College functions for which academic attire is required shall have said attire furnished by the College at no charge. Attendance at Commencement is encouraged. Association members may be excused from attendance at Commencement with the approval of the appropriate Dean.

# D. Transfer

- 1. Off-campus assignments shall be mutually agreed upon by the Association member involved and the President.
- 2. Association members who wish to enter the teaching faculty on a full-time basis, shall be permitted to do so upon written request, if qualified, and vacancies exist. Faculty rank and salary shall be according to the provisions of the faculty contract in effect at that time.

# E. College Closings

If roads and/or weather conditions are deemed unsafe by the Administration and classes are cancelled, or if the College is closed for any other reason, Association members who staff administrative and academic offices will not be required to report for work that day. Further, any Association member on vacation for any such day will not be charged vacation for any such day. College employees who work for an externally funded program which deals with or directly serves County and/or Social Service Agencies and whose inclement weather work day schedule differs from that of the College will be bound by the inclement weather work day schedule of the County or Social Service Agency they serve.

# F. Field Trips

- 1. Association members will be reimbursed for mileage and other appropriate expenses as per College policy.
- 2. The College will pay the deductible for damage to an employee's vehicle due to an accident while the employee was driving on College business. The employee must make an insurance claim with his or her company and present to the College all insurance claim forms and supporting documentation. The maximum College payment will be \$500.00 per insurance claim. Commuting to and from the College is not covered by this paragraph of the agreement.

# G. Job Reclassifications

- 1. If an administrative employee's duties and responsibilities are changed so that he/she assumes additional charges not specified in the original job description for a period exceeding ninety (90) days, said employee may be eligible for job reclassification. Criteria that may be utilized in determining reclassification include, but are not limited to:
  - a. Additional number of employees supervised.
  - b. Additional budget responsibilities.
  - c. Additional duties not in the original job description.

## 2. Procedure

If an administrative employee determines that additional duties and responsibilities have been assigned, he/she may request a reclassification by putting into writing such request to:

- a. The immediate supervisor, who sends the request with his/her recommendation to
- b. The appropriate Dean, who sends the request with his/her recommendation to
- c. The appropriate Vice President who sends the request with his/her recommendation to the College President.
- 3. The College will respond as to the disposition of the re-classification request in writing within a forty-five (45) day period after the request has been initiated.

- 4. Upon reclassification, an employee's salary will be adjusted accordingly.
- 5. The President of the Association will be notified by the Office of Human Resources and Labor Relations of reclassifications.

#### H. Vacancies

Whenever full or part-time administrative or supervisory or technical openings or vacancies occur during the year in the College administration, notice of such position(s) shall be posted and distributed to all Association members to provide appropriate and reasonable opportunity to apply for the position(s). Such posting notice shall include the deadline date for application. Understanding that current Association members will not be given preference in the hiring process, qualified Association members applying for said vacancies will be granted an interview.

Upon request to the Office of Human Resources and Labor Relations, prospective applicants shall be given a copy of the job description which will include responsibilities, qualifications and salary range. Vacancies must be posted ten (10) days in-house before advertising outside the College. Written notification of the final disposition will be provided within five (5) working days after Board action for in-house Association applicants.

#### I. New Positions

The College shall notify the Association of any new positions created during the term of this contract that will be added to the bargaining unit.

A position description shall be forwarded to the President of the Association.

The Association will be consulted regarding the salary range assigned to the new position.

The salary range assignment shall be subject to negotiations in the next round of negotiations.

The new position description and salary range must be determined before assigning personnel, acting or permanent, to the new position.

New positions shall be posted in accordance with the procedures for "vacancies".

## J. Acting Positions

No Association member shall be required to serve in an acting position for a period longer than six (6) months. After six (6) months acting positions must be posted and formal hiring procedures followed.

# K. Sexual/Racial Harassment

Any employee who engages in any form of conduct or activity (sexual/racial harassment) which violates Section 703 of Title VII, shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge, as the College in its sole discretion shall deem appropriate including selective discipline where all participants cannot be discharged and all leaders, participants and instigators cannot be identified. An employee who believes the disciplinary action by the College concerning him or her was not justified shall have recourse to the appropriate grievance procedure including arbitration.

#### L. Reduction in Force

Subject to the sole approval of the College President and for the purpose of retention of employment in the event of a reduction in size of the Association, the affected person may exercise his seniority by displacing the most junior person in a department(s), field(s), or classification for which the senior person is qualified. The salary for the Association member in his/her new position will be negotiable.

Association members hired on or after July 1, 1994 who are paid in whole or in part through grant funds at the time of hire shall have no right to bump into a position paid through regular College funds. Employees hired on regular College funds who are transferred, voluntarily or involuntarily, to grant-funded programs shall continue to accrue seniority as if they had remained in a position funded by regular College funds. If employees initially hired under grant funds are transferred, voluntarily or involuntarily, to programs funded by regular College funds, they shall have seniority thereafter from the initial date of transfer.

Except as otherwise provided, unit members employed in the GED grant program shall have the right to displace less senior employees within the GED work group only, and shall have no right to displace any other College employee. Association members that subsequently transfer, voluntarily or involuntarily, to the GED program, shall retain the right to displace other College employees not in the GED work group.

# M. Support Staff Selection

Applicants for supportive staff positions will be interviewed by the immediate supervisor in advance of the official appointments. The basic purpose of the interview will be to provide the immediate supervisor with an opportunity to delineate the specific job responsibilities and expectations that the applicant will have to satisfy.

It will be the responsibility of the immediate supervisor to complete a performance appraisal form at the end of the probationary period and forward same to the Human Resources Office. Further, the supervisor will provide the candidate with a photocopy of the appraisal form at the time it is completed.

#### **ARTICLE 4 - ADMINISTRATIVE BENEFITS**

# A. Paid Leaves of Absence

a. Association members who work 12, 11, 10 or 9 month positions will accrue vacation in accordance with the following schedule:

	12 Month	11 Month	10 Month	9 Month
	Position	Position	Position	Position
Years of	14 days per yr	13 days per yr	12 days per yr	11 days per yr
employment:	1.1667 days/mo	1.1818 days/mo	1.2000 days/mo	1.2222 days/mo
Less than 5	8.1667 hours/mo	8.2727 hours/mo	8.4000 hours/mo	8.5555 hours/mo
	20 days per yr	18.50 days per yr	17 days per yr	15.50 days per yr
5 through 9	1.6667 days/mo	1.6818 days/mo	1.7000 days/mo	1.7222 days/mo
	11.6667 hours/mo	11.7727 hours/mo	11.9000 hours/mo	12.0555 hours/mo
	23 days per yr	21.25 days per yr	19.50 days per yr	17.75 days per yr
10 through 14	1.9167 days/mo	1.9318 days/mo	1.9500 days/mo	1.9722 days/mo
	13.4167 hours/mo	13.5227 hours/mo	13.6500 hours/mo	13.8055 hours/mo
	26 days per yr	24 days per yr	22 days per yr	20 days per yr
15 or more	2.1667 days/mo	2.1818 days/mo	2.2000 days/mo	2.2222 days/mo
	15.1667 hours/mo	15.2727 hours/mo	15.4000 hours/mo	15.5555 rs/mo

- b. An Association member may use his/her earned vacation time during the contract year in which the vacation time was earned or he/she has the option to use his/her vacation time in total or in part in the succeeding year with the understanding of the immediate supervisor and the College President.
- c. If necessary, Association members may have the period from July 1 to October 31, to use any earned vacation time that was not used prior to the end of the fiscal year, on June 30. However, after October 31, an Association member will only be able to carry one (1) year of accumulated vacation time forward into the new contract year. Under extraordinary circumstances and with the sole approval of the immediate supervisor, an extension in the period of time within which the days are to be utilized may be granted.
- d. Upon request, Association members may be granted additional vacation days without pay with the approval of the President or the Office of Human Resources and Labor Relations.
- e. Individuals are entitled to accrued vacation leave or payment for same upon termination of employment. Effective January 1, 2013 employees receiving payment of accrued vacation leave at retirement shall receive payment from the College through a 403(b) retirement account established by the College for this purpose.
- f. No later than July 15th of each year, each Association member shall be given an accounting of the number of vacation hours he/she shall have available for use. An Association member in danger of losing vacation time will be notified no later than September 1st.

#### 2. Sick Leave

a. Sick leave is occasioned by the absence of an individual from duty, because of illness, non-work related accident or exposure to contagious disease and is recorded from the first day of absence. Sick leave may be utilized to tend to an illness within the employee's immediate family. For the purpose of this Section, "Immediate Family" is defined as a member's spouse, mother, father, child, stepchild, or domestic partner.

The College may require an employee who has been absent because of personal illness for five (5) consecutive days or a continuing pattern of absenteeism, as a condition of his/her return to duty, to be examined at the expense of the College by a physician designated by the College. Such examination shall establish whether the employee is capable of performing his/her normal duties and that his/her return will not jeopardize the health and safety of other employees.

- b. Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of one (1) day for each full calendar month of employment (generally twelve (12) days per contract year). Sick leave shall be cumulative. Upon retirement from the service of Camden County College, or after twenty (20) years service for employees who resign or terminate in good standing as confirmed by the New Jersey Public Employee Retirement System or the Alternate Benefit Program, an Association member shall receive a lump sum payment equal to \$80.00 per day up to a maximum of 50% of unused accumulated sick days with the provision that:
  - (1) The Association member has been employed continuously by the College (including periods of approved leave of absence) for a period of fifteen (15) complete years or more, and
  - (2) The Association member has formally notified the College of an intent to retire by November 1 of the year prior to the fiscal year in which retirement will take place. In emergent circumstances, a later notice may be considered by the Board; however, the College may elect to defer payment for one year to allow for budgeting.

Exceptions to the period of employment and notification timeliness described above will be granted only in cases of unforeseen disability retirement from the College.

- (3) The final payment will not exceed \$15,000. Effective January 1, 2013 bargaining unit members will receive payment from the College through a 403(b) retirement account established by the College for this purpose.
- c. The College has the authority and discretion to negotiate separation packages with individual Administrative unit members which are better than the terms of the negotiated agreement. Individual employees may initiate such negotiations.

#### 3. Bereavement

- a. Leave not to exceed five (5) days will be allowed for each death in the immediate family. Family shall mean: father, mother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, siblings, wife, husband, children, stepchildren, grandchildren, grandmother, grandfather, and non-family members of the immediate household.
- b. In the event of the death of a member of a family other than those previously listed, an Association member may be entitled to one (1) full day to attend the funeral.

## 4. Family Illness

In case of serious illness of a member of the employee's household, determination of eligibility for leave with pay shall be left to the discretion of the President. Additionally, the College will comply with the provisions that are embodied in the Family Leave Act.

#### 5. Personal Leave

Employees will be granted personal leave with pay not to exceed three (3) days per year, for matters which cannot be cared for in other ways, subject to the approval of the immediate supervisor. The employee requesting personal leave will give at least twenty-four (24) hours advance notification to his/her immediate supervisor. Personal leave days which are not used shall at the end of the year be added to the individual's number of accumulated sick days.

Probationary employees shall be granted Personal Leave on a pro-rated basis as follows:

Date of Hire	Personal Days
July 1 - October 31	1 day
November 1 - February 28	1 day
March 1 - June 30	1 day

## 6. Holidays

The members of the Association shall be excused from work with pay on those days set as College-wide holidays.

The College agrees to pay each eligible employee for each of the following holidays:

- (1) July 4th
- (2) Labor Day
- (3) Thanksgiving Day
- (4) Day after Thanksgiving Day
- (5) Christmas Eve Day through/and including New Year's Day
- (6) Martin Luther King's Birthday
- (7) Memorial Day
- (8) The College will designate the period between December 26 and December 30 as a holiday recess.

(9) Five (5) consecutive days paid holiday leave either the week of Spring Break or the week prior to Spring Break as determined by the College. Employees shall alternate weeks during each academic year following its scheduling and implementation by the College in 2013. In the event that operational needs preclude scheduling the holiday during the timeframe set forth herein, the College shall have the discretion to alter the schedule set forth to avoid a disruption in operations.

College employees who work for an externally funded program which deals with or directly serves County and/or Social Service Agencies and whose holiday schedule differs from that of the College will be bound by the holiday schedule of the County or Social Service Agency they serve.

# 7. Jury Duty

If an Administrator is required to perform jury duty, he/she will be granted leave with pay. All per diem compensation received from the State or County will be returned to Camden County College.

# B. Unpaid Leaves of Absence

# 1. Professional Leave

A leave of absence of one (1) year may be granted by the Board of Trustees to any Association member upon formal application for the purpose of advanced study if in the opinion of the Board such study shall benefit the College as well as the individual. The Board may extend such leave beyond the one (1) year limit. Upon return from such leave, an Association member shall be placed at the same position on the salary schedule on which he/she would have been placed had he/she worked in the College during such period.

#### 2. Exchange Teaching and Administrative Service

A leave of absence for one (1) year may be granted to any Association member by the Board of Trustees upon application for the purpose of participating in exchange teaching programs or administrative programs in other states, territories or countries, or a cultural program related to his professional responsibilities if, in the opinion of the Board, such experience shall benefit the College as well as the individual. The Board may extend such leave beyond the one (1) year period. Upon return from such leave, an Association member shall be placed at the same position on the salary schedule on which he/she would have been had he/she served in the College during such period.

# 3. Service in Professional Organizations

A leave of absence of up to one (1) year may be granted to any Association member by the Board of Trustees upon application for the purpose of serving as an officer of any professional association or on its staff, if in the opinion of the Board such service shall benefit the College as well as the individual. The Board may extend such leave beyond the one (1) year limit. Upon return from such leave, such Association members shall be placed at the same position on the salary schedule on which they would have been had they served in the College during such period.

# 4. Child-Rearing Leave

- a. The Board shall grant childrearing leave of absence to a maximum of one (1) year without pay to any Association member upon request in accord with the following provisions:
  - (1) Within sixty (60) days of medical confirmation of pregnancy or adoption, the Association member shall notify the Board of the anticipated date of birth or adoption of the child of the Association member or the Association member's spouse or domestic partner's child.
  - (2) The Association member shall be allowed to continue normal working activity as long as she is physically able to do so. If the Board believes that her working performance has noticeably declined because of her physical condition or capacity, the Board may remove the Association member from her duties if:
    - (a) The Association member cannot produce a certification from her physician stating she is medically able to continue performing her duties, or
    - (b) the Board's Chief Medical Officer and the Association member's physician agree that she cannot continue performing her duties, or
    - (c) if following a difference of medical opinion between the Board's Chief Medical Officer and the Association member's physician, the Board may request expert consultation in which case the two physicians shall agree in good faith on a third impartial physician who shall examine the Association member and whose medical opinion shall be conclusive and binding on the issue of medical capacity to continue working.
- b. The request for such leave shall include the date when such leave will be expected to conclude. The leave granted will conclude on that date unless in the discretion of the Board an additional reasonable period of time is granted upon the Association member's request for reasons associated with the pregnancy or birth or for other proper cause.

- c. In the case of termination of pregnancy for any reason other than normal birth, the Association member shall notify the Board of such circumstances and the Board shall honor a request to return earlier than the date originally established upon receipt of medical certification by the Association member's physician of physical fitness to perform her duties.
- d. Upon request, the Board may extend the leave granted beyond the date originally requested.

## 5. Admission to Courses

Association members and eligible dependents who meet the course entrance requirements are to be granted tuition free entrance to any credit classes offered by the College. The general service fees will be waived for Association members and eligible dependents. Dependents shall be those defined by the Internal Revenue Service, the Association member's domestic partner and dependent children. Members of the Association, domestic partner, and eligible dependents may enroll in credit courses without payment of tuition and general service fees. Additionally, Association members may enroll in non-credit courses on a space available basis without payment of tuition and general service fees. Laboratory fees for non-credit courses will be waived if said course(s) is deemed to be work-related and approved by the appropriate Dean. This is applicable to non-credit courses.

#### 6. Tuition Reimbursement

Upon successful completion ("C" or better) of a course, Association members may be reimbursed for tuition and fees up to an amount per credit that does not exceed the prevailing rate per credit at Rutgers University for in-state students, or at fifty percent (50%) of the existing rate of the institution the Association member is attending, whichever is the greater amount. The employee can be reimbursed for a maximum of eighteen (18) credits or its equivalent during the period between July 1 and June 30, each year. There will be a different reimbursement rate for undergraduate course(s) than for graduate course(s) in accordance with the respective tuition rates at Rutgers University. Reimbursement provisions will also be applicable to workshops and seminars. Reimbursement for "Dissertation Guidance" shall be limited to one (1) semester.

The College will reimburse Association members for the Transfer Credit Evaluation Fee, the Annual Enrollment Fee and Tuition Fees assessed by Edison State College.

Approval by the College President or designee is to be secured in advance. The courses must be in an accredited program in higher education and be related to the individual's work function at the College. Payment will be made on exhibition of receipt of payment for the course(s) and the official grade(s). Employees receiving tuition reimbursement are obligated to continue to work at the College for twenty-four (24) months following receipt of the tuition reimbursement. If the employee fails to continue to work for twenty-four (24) months after receiving the reimbursement, the employee must repay the College for the amount of the tuition reimbursement.

# 7. Professional Improvement and Membership

- a. Association members shall be permitted to attend at least one (1) annual meeting or convention of their particular area and all state and regional meetings of relative consequence. The Board shall reimburse the Association member for all appropriate expenses incurred as a result of these meetings. The President shall be the final determiner of the suitability of such attendance and reimbursement following initial approval by the Association member's supervisor.
- b. Any office represented by a member of this Association may apply to the Board of Trustees through the Office of the College President for payment of institutional membership in professional organizations relating specifically to that office making said request. The determination of appropriate organizations shall be made jointly in each instance by the requester, his immediate supervisor, and the College President. Professional magazines other than those included in institutional memberships as described above shall be secured through the Office of the Library Director. The appropriateness of the magazines and the number of magazines per office shall be determined jointly by the Library Director, the requester, the requester's immediate supervisor and the College President.

#### 8. Sabbatical Leave

The Board will establish a Sabbatical Leave to furnish Association members with an opportunity for professional development through study, research, and/or other pursuits as may contribute to professional growth. A Sabbatical Leave can be recommended by the College President to the Board of Trustees subject to the following conditions:

- a. An Association member must have been in the full-time employment of the College as an Association unit member for five (5) consecutive years.
- b. Application shall be made to the Professional Standards Committee of the Association.
- c. A maximum of 5% of the Association may be on Sabbatical in any one academic year.
- d. An Association member must wait at least five (5) consecutive years after taking Sabbatical Leave before he/she is eligible for another Sabbatical Leave.
- e. Compensation during the leave shall be:
  - (1) full salary for one (1) semester
  - (2) half salary for two (2) semesters
  - (3) full salary for two (2) semesters with the Association member working one-half of their scheduled hours, subject to the approval of the President.

- f. the recipient retains all rights and privileges and benefits of regular employment. The recipient may accept a grant, a fellowship, or similar monies usually identified with education.
- g. Acceptance of Sabbatical Leave obligates the recipient to return to the College for at least one (1) year.

# C. Insurance Programs

- 1. Members shall contribute toward the cost of premium for the plan selected under the School Employees Health Benefit Plan according to the amounts set forth in P.L. 2011 c. 78. Should the College subsequently change carriers to an equivalent plan the premium contribution will remain in accordance with the law.
- 2. Effective July 1, 2008 married couples or civil unions where both are College employees (regardless of the bargaining unit, if any) must choose only one medical and prescription plan for themselves and all eligible dependents. The spouse or civil union who waives coverage will be eligible for waiver payments as outlined in Article 4, Section C, Paragraph 8. Members are exempt from this provision if enrolled in School Employees Health Benefits Program but still eligible for the waiver payments as outlined in Article 4, Section C, Paragraph 8.
- 3. Effective July 1, 2008 married couples or civil unions where both are College employees (regardless of the bargaining unit, if any) must choose only one dental plan for themselves and all eligible dependents. The spouse or civil union who waives coverage will be eligible for waiver payments as outlined in Article 4, Section C, Paragraph 8.
- 4. The College will pay the entire premium for a dental insurance plan for unit members and their eligible dependents. Effective January 1, 2013, the maximum annual benefit shall be \$2,000 per person for such plan.
- 5. Each Association member shall receive the right to prepay his/her own premiums on all insurance to which he/she is entitled prior to, or during, any officially approved leave of absence.
- 6. To be eligible for health insurance, an employee must work 30.5 hours per week. Unit members employed on or before October 31, 1997 for more than 20 hours per week and who are currently receiving health insurance benefits will continue to receive such benefits.
- 7. For the eligible dependent(s) of a unit member who dies, the College will pay the premium for these insurance plans for twelve months after the unit member's death. As soon as possible after the death of such unit member, the College will provide his/her survivors with all pertinent information related to insurance, retirement, and other benefits.

8. The College will pay one thousand dollars (\$1,000) per year to an employee who elects to waive all health insurance for themselves and their dependents if an employee shows proof of alternative coverage. The College will pay one thousand three hundred dollars (\$1,300) per year to an employee who elects to waive all health insurance, dental insurance, and prescription insurance coverage if an employee shows proof of alternative coverage. The College will pay six hundred dollars (\$600) per year to an employee who elects to waive dependent health insurance coverage if an employee shows proof of alternative coverage. The College will pay eight hundred dollars (\$800) per year to an employee for electing to waive dependent health insurance, dental insurance, and prescription insurance coverage if an employee shows proof of alternative coverage.

These payments will be made in the first paycheck of January for a full year without the insurance coverage (if eligible for a full year) or the unit member may select a semi-annual payment in the first paychecks in January and July. If the unit member drops the insurance after the beginning of the plan year, or subsequently re-enrolls during a plan year due to a triggering event, the payment will be prorated.

# D. Disability

The Board will provide accident and/or sickness disability insurance without cost to the Association member. The following disability benefits will be effective January 1, 2009.

- a. Sixty-Six and two-thirds (66 2/3) of salary up to \$450 per week benefit to be paid for twenty-four (24) weeks after the onset of the initial disability payment.
- b. Fourteen (14) calendar days/ten (10) working days waiting period. Sick leave, if available, to be used during the waiting period.
- c. For all illnesses eligible for short term disability, Association members must exhaust at least 50% of their accrued sick leave. After 50% of accrued sick leave has been exhausted, Association members may opt to remain at full pay or choose to apply for short term disability benefits at sixty-six and two-thirds (66 2/3) of salary up to \$450 per week.
- d. Association members may not be paid sick leave and collect disability benefits simultaneously.

## E. Wellness Program

A Wellness Program will be continued and maintained by the College for the physical health of all employees. It is understood that the Wellness Program will be available at no cost to Association members.

# F. Human Resource Development

Camden County College is committed to fostering an environment that enables individuals to seek opportunities for professional growth and enrichment. The College will help employees to develop their potential and improve their ability to meet job responsibilities by providing opportunities and encouraging participation in educational training and development programs.

The Association will work with Management to select appropriate educational training and development programs for its membership.

# G. Medical Flexible Spending Account

The College shall continue providing Association members with a flexible spending account. Beginning January 1, 2013 the College will contribute six hundred dollars (\$600) each calendar year. Association members may add voluntary contributions on a pre-tax basis.

#### H. Domestic Partners

- 1. The College will provide health, dental, and prescription coverage for an Association member's domestic partner and their children provided there is no legal impediment to doing so. If there is legal impediment to such insurance benefits, the benefits shall be effective when the legal impediment is removed.
- 2. A domestic partnership is a relationship of two persons of the same sex that has been registered and recognized by the State of New Jersey. If the Association member and his/her domestic partner do not reside in New Jersey, their domestic partnership must meet all of the following criteria.
  - a. Provide evidence that they are registered as domestic partners if they reside in another state or locality which allows for the registration of domestic partnerships;
  - b. Both persons have a common residence and are otherwise jointly responsible for each other's common welfare as evidenced by joint financial arrangements or joint ownership of real or personal property, which shall be demonstrated by at least one of the following:
    - (1) A joint deed, mortgage agreement or lease;
    - (2) A joint bank account;
    - (3) Designation of one of the persons as a primary beneficiary in the other person's will;
    - (4) Designation of one of the persons as a primary beneficiary in the other person's life insurance policy or retirement plan; or
    - (5) Joint ownership of a motor vehicle;
    - (6) Have a common residence means that two persons share the same place to live regardless of whether or not, the legal right to possess the place is in both of their names; one or both persons have additional places to live; or one person temporarily leaves the shared place of residence to reside elsewhere, on either a short-term or long-term basis, for reasons that include, but are not limited to, medical care, incarceration, education, a sabbatical or employment, but intends to return to the shared place of residence.

- c. Both persons agree to be jointly responsible for each other's basic living expenses during the domestic partnership ("Jointly responsible" means that each domestic partner agrees to provide for the other partner's basic living expenses if the other partner is unable to provide for him/herself. "Basic living expenses" means the cost of basic food, and shelter, and any other cost, including but not limited to, the cost of health care, if some or all of the cost is paid as a benefit because a person is another person's domestic partner);
- d. Neither person is in a marriage recognized by New Jersey law or a member of another domestic partnership;
- e. Neither person is related to the other by blood or affinity up to and including the fourth degree of consanguinity;
- f. Both persons are of the same sex and therefore unable to enter into a marriage with each other that is recognized by New Jersey law;
- g. Both persons have chosen to share each other's lives in a committed relationship of mutual caring;
- h. Both persons are at least 18 years of age;
- i. Both persons file jointly an affidavit with the Human Resources office that sets forth each party's name and age, the parties' common mailing address, and a statement that, at the time the affidavit is signed; both parties meet the requirements of this provision.
- j. Neither person has been a partner in a domestic partnership that was terminated less than 180 days prior to the filing of the current affidavit with the Human Resources office, except that this prohibition shall not apply if one of the partners died; and, in all cases in which a person registered a prior domestic partnership in New Jersey, the domestic partnership shall have been terminated in accordance with the provisions of section 10 of P.L.2003,c246 (C.26:8A-10)
- 3. Dependent children in a domestic partnership household are eligible for identified benefits, equivalent to the benefits provided to dependent children of married employees, if the dependent child meets all of the following criteria:
  - a. Unmarried;
  - b. Received more than 50% of their support from the domestic partnership;
  - c. Live in the household as their principal place of residence, unless they live at school or elsewhere as the result of a divorce or legal separation;
  - d. Not employed on a full-time basis, except on college vacations; and
  - e. Under age 19, or under age 23 and a full-time student.

# I. Camden Campus Parking

Members of the Association who are assigned to the Camden Campus shall receive free parking in the surface parking lot at the Camden Campus or Association members may purchase passes for parking in the garage at the \$3.00 per day rate with in/out privileges for the term of the agreement.

The College will make flexible spending accounts for parking and mass transit available for Association members for voluntary contributions.

## **ARTICLE 5 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

A grievance is a claim by an Association member, group of Association members, or the Association hereinafter referred to as "Grievant", based upon an event which affects a condition of employment, discipline, or discharge, and/or alleged violation, misrepresentation or misapplication of any provision of this Agreement. Non-contractual grievances shall also apply and be adjudicated through this process.

In the event that an Association member or a group of Association members, or the Association believes they have a basis for a grievance he/she or they shall:

# Step One

There shall be an informal discussion of the grievance by the grievant and his/her immediate supervisor.

# Step Two

If the grievance is not resolved at Step One, the Association but not an individual or group of members shall present the grievance in writing (Appendix I Form) to the immediate supervisor within thirty (30) calendar days after the grievant became aware of the action or occurrence giving rise to the grievance or should reasonably have become aware of such occurrence. The immediate supervisor shall meet with the grievant within seven (7) working days of receipt of the grievance, and shall make a decision and communicate it in writing within seven (7) working days of said meeting.

# Step Three

If the grievance is not resolved at Step Two, the grievance shall be presented in writing to the appropriate Dean or Director within seven (7) working days of receipt of the decision at Step Two. The Dean or Director shall meet with the grievant within seven (7) working days of receipt of the grievance, and shall make a decision and communicate it in writing within seven (7) working days of said meeting.

#### Step Four

If the grievance is not resolved at Step Three, the grievance shall be presented in writing to the appropriate Vice President within seven (7) working days of receipt of the decision at Step Three. The Vice President shall meet with the grievant within seven (7) working days of receipt of the grievance, and shall make a decision and communicate it in writing within seven (7) working days of said meeting.

# Step Five

If the grievance is not resolved at Step Four, the grievance shall be presented in writing to the President or Designee, who shall be the Director of Human Resources and Labor Relations, within seven (7) working days of receipt of the decision at Step Four. The President or Designee shall meet with the grievant within seven (7) working days of receipt of the grievance, and shall make a decision and communicate it in writing within seven (7) working days of said meeting.

# Step Six

Within fifteen (15) working days after receipt of the decision of the President or Designee, an appeal may be made by the grievant and the authorized Association representative to the Public Employment Relations Commission for arbitration under its rules. The College and the Association shall not be permitted to assert in such arbitration proceeding any ground or to rely on evidence not previously disclosed to the other party. The arbitrator shall have no power to alter, add to or subtract from or modify this Agreement. Both parties agree to be bound by the award of the arbitrator and the decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties.

The arbitrator's fees and those of the Public Employment Relations Commission shall be shared equally by the Association and the College but each shall bear its own cost of presenting its case to the arbitrator.

- A. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by the Board or the Association against any individual for participating in any grievance.
- B. The number of days indicated at each level should be considered as maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process.
- C. All documents, communications and records dealing with a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of participants.
- D. It is agreed that the aggrieved party and the Association shall be furnished with all available information for the processing of any grievance.
- E. If a grievant has a grievance which he/she wishes to discuss with the appropriate Dean, he/she is free to do so without recourse to the grievance procedure. However, no grievance shall be adjusted without prior notification to the Association and an opportunity for an Association representative to be present, nor shall any adjustment of a grievance be inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement. In the administration of the grievance procedure, the interest of the Camden County College Association of Administrative Personnel shall be the sole responsibility of the Association.
- F. A grievance may be withdrawn at any level. However, if in the judgment of the Grievance Committee, the grievance affects the welfare of the Camden County College Association of Administrative Personnel, the grievance may be continued to be processed as a grievance of the Association.

## ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTS AND DISMISSALS

#### A. *Contracts*

Annual contracts stipulating professional title, salary and placement on salary schedule shall be issued for the term of the contract by March 15th.

Except as otherwise provided, during the first five (5) years of professional employment, an employee shall receive the following notices of non-reappointment:

1st year	60 calendar days
2nd year	90 calendar days
3rd year	120 calendar days
4th year	150 calendar days
5th year or more	180 calendar days

Except as otherwise provided, employees who have completed more than five (5) full years of employment with the College, or who have completed five (5) years and have been offered a contract for an additional year, who are subsequently not reappointed shall be entitled to one (1) month severance pay.

Except as otherwise provided, employees who have completed more than ten (10) full years of employment with the College, or who have completed ten (10) years and have been offered a contract for an additional year, who are subsequently not reappointed shall be entitled to three (3) months severance pay.

Except as otherwise provided, employees who have completed more than twenty (20) full years of employment with the College, or who have completed twenty (20) years and have been offered a contract for an additional year, who are subsequently not reappointed shall be entitled to six (6) months severance pay.

Unit members employed in grant programs which began after July 1, 2001 or grant funded employees hired after July 1, 2001 shall receive notice of non-reappointment no less than sixty (60) calendar days prior to the expiration of the funding grant. If notice of non-reappointment is provided, employees funded under the grant shall not be entitled to severance pay. In the event the grant is not renewed or is significantly reduced; the College may require unit members to use their accumulated leave time prior to the expiration of funding for the entire grant or that position.

Unit members employed for a specific auxiliary or contract training program shall receive notice of non-reappointment no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the expiration of the funding or declaration of fiscal exigency in the auxiliary or contract training program. (Such employees shall have this status noted on their letters of appointment.) If notice of non-reappointment is provided, employees funded under these programs shall not be entitled to severance pay. In the event these programs are not renewed or are significantly reduced; the College may require unit members to use their accumulated leave time prior to the expiration of funding.

# B. Discharge Procedure

No employee may be suspended, disciplined, or dismissed without just cause as prescribed by law. Any employee discharged for just cause is not entitled to any severance pay.

## **ARTICLE 7 - PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION**

# A. Salary Payment

The salary of each Association member shall be paid in twenty-six (26) equal payments.

# B. Summer and Evening Session Salaries

The payment for teaching in the summer and during the evening session shall be made at the rate that the faculty receives per credit hour.

# C. Overload and Part-Time Compensation

Payment for overload shall be made at the same rate that the faculty receives.

# D. Length of Service

Employees who have not been employed at the College for a full twelve (12) months prior to a scheduled salary increase, will receive a prorated increase based on the number of months of service.

The following schedule will be utilized for all new employees hired after July 1, 2011 to determine the amount of their prorated increase in base salary:

	7/1/12	Raise	7/1/13	Raise	7/1/14	Raise	7/1/15	Raise	7/1/16	Raise
	Hire	Pro-	Hire	Pro-	Hire	Pro	Hire	Pro-	Hire	Pro-
Percentage	Date (on	Rated								
Applied	payroll)	Raise								
100.00%	Jul 11	2.00%	Jul 12	2.00%	Jul 13	2.00%	Jul 14	2.00%	Jul 15	2.00%
91.67%	Aug 11	1.83%	Aug 12	1.83%	Aug 13	1.83%	Aug 14	1.83%	Aug 15	1.83%
83.33%	Sept 11	1.67%	Sept 12	1.67%	Sept 13	1.67%	Sept 14	1.67%	Sept 15	1.67%
75.00%	Oct 11	1.50%	Oct 12	1.50%	Oct 13	1.50%	Oct 14	1.50%	Oct 15	1.50%
66.67%	Nov 11	1.33%	Nov 12	1.33%	Nov 13	1.33%	Nov 14	1.33%	Nov 15	1.33%
58.33%	Dec 11	1,16%	Dec 12	1,16%	Dec 13	1,16%	Dec 14	1,16%	Dec 15	1,16%
50.00%	Jan 12	1.00%	Jan 13	1.00%	Jan 14	1.00%	Jan 15	1.00%	Jan 16	1.00%
41.67%	Feb 12	.83%	Feb 13	.83%	Feb 14	.83%	Feb 15	.83%	Feb 16	.83%
33.33%	Mar 12	.67%	Mar 13	.67%	Mar 14	.67%	Mar 15	.67%	Mar 16	.67%
25.00%	Apr 12	.50%	Apr 13	.50%	Apr 14	.50%	Apr 15	.50%	Apr 16	.50%
16.67%	May 12	.33%	May 13	.33%	May 14	.33%	May 15	.33%	May 16	.33%
8.33%	Jun 12	.16%	Jun 13	.16%	Jun 14	.16%	Jun 15	.16%	Jun 16	.16%

#### **ARTICLE 8 – EVALUATIONS**

- A. Evaluation is a continuous process that goes on throughout the year; however, an Association member must be apprised periodically of his/her performance and given an opportunity to respond to his/her evaluators. Each year, the immediate supervisor shall prepare a formal evaluation prior to recommending renewal or non-renewal. The supervisor shall consider all available information.
- B. This formal evaluation process shall be designed to improve performance and shall be based on the assigned responsibilities, duties and the job description. Specific suggestions and examples as to how to improve must be given in writing.
- C. Information to be considered shall include:
  - 1. Self-evaluation report: Based on the job description, assigned duties, responsibilities and goals for the year, each Association member will provide a narrative description of his/her performance for the year since the last report was written.
  - 2. Work or reports produced by the Association member.
  - 3. Other materials in the employee's personnel file relating to the employee's job performance.
- D. The written formal evaluation shall be reviewed with the Association member in conference. If so desired, a written response to the evaluation by the individual may be attached to the original evaluation.
- E. Forms to be used as part of the evaluation process shall be developed by the College in consultation with the Association of Administrative Personnel.
- F. All written evaluation materials and attachments shall be placed in the individual's personnel file with a copy provided to the employee.
- G. An employee who has received two or more satisfactory evaluations and then receives an unsatisfactory evaluation shall be re-evaluated within ninety (90) days.
- H. New employees will be hired for a probationary period of one-hundred and twenty (120) calendar days.

#### **ARTICLE 9 - PERSONNEL FILES**

Deans and/or Supervisors shall be encouraged to place in the personnel file of each Association member information of a positive nature indicating special competencies, achievements, performances, or contributions of academic, professional or civic nature. Any such materials received from outside, competent, responsible sources shall also be included in the file.

One personnel file for each Association member shall be maintained in the Office of Human Resources and Labor Relations. An Association member may inspect his/her file upon request.

No material derogatory to an Association member's conduct, service, character, or personality shall be placed in the personnel file of the Association member unless that Association member has had an opportunity to read such material. The Association member shall acknowledge that he/she has read such material by affixing his/her signature to it. Be it understood that such signature merely signifies that he/she has read the material in question and that it indicates neither approval nor rejection of its contents.

The Association member shall have the right to answer in writing any material in his/her personnel file, and his/her answer shall be attached to the file copy.

Anonymous material shall not be placed in an Association member's file

No item may be removed from an Association member's file without his/her prior knowledge.

No Association member will be able to examine another Association member's file unless prior written permission has been granted by the Association member.

An Association member shall have the right to be furnished with copies of any material in his/her file.

A duly appointed representative of NJEA may, at the Association member's request, accompany said person when he/she reviews his/her file.

The Board agrees to protect the confidentiality of the personnel files, personal references, academic credentials, and other similar documents. It shall not establish any separate personnel file which is not available for the Association member's inspection except for pre-employment interviews and references which shall not be part of the Association member's regular personnel file but shall be kept in a separate locked file.

#### ARTICLE 10 - SALARY ADJUSTMENT/MERIT PROCESS

All recommendations for salary adjustment and/or merit will be reviewed by the Professional Standards Committee. The Association component of the Committee will consist of the Association President and four (4) elected Association members whose recommendation will be made directly to the College President.

# A. Salary Adjustment

Criteria for salary adjustment from one level to another shall include, but not be limited to:

- 1. Contributions to the Program or Profession
- 2. Exemplary Evaluations
- 3. Additional Education and/or Professional Certifications
- 4. Contributions to Student Counseling and/or Campus Life
- 5. Contributions to College Community Relations

#### Procedure:

- 1. A completed application packet (see Appendix II and III) will be presented to the Professional Standards Committee no later than April 1st.
- 2. An eligible Association member may be recommended for salary adjustment by:
  - a. the unit member
  - b. supervisor
  - c. an employee of the College
- 3. A letter of intent must be submitted by the individual initiating the recommendation to the Chairperson of the Professional Standards Committee. Failure to comply could result in a processing delay.
- 4. The Professional Standards Committee will review all requests. Recommendations for support or non-support (with explanation) will be made to the President of the College. The Professional Standards Committee will notify each applicant of their recommendation no later than May 1st of the academic year.
- 5. The President shall evaluate all requests for salary adjustment and make a recommendation to the Board of Trustees. The Board's decision is final.
- 6. Individuals who are recommended by the President for a salary adjustment will be notified by his/her office at the time the recommendation is approved by the Board.

An Association member who is recommended for a salary adjustment as a result of application to the Professional Standards Committee will receive a 3-6% increase in base salary.

#### B. Merit

Criteria for selection of merit increase shall include, but not be limited to:

- 1. Extended service to the College
- 2. Professional activity
- 3. Exceptional performance

#### Procedure:

- 1. An eligible Association member may be recommended for a merit award by:
  - a. the unit member
  - b. supervisor
  - c. an employee of the College
- 2. A completed application packet, including a cover sheet and a letter of intent (see Appendix II and III) must be submitted by the individual to the Chairperson of the Professional Standards Committee no later than April 1st. Failure to comply could result in a processing delay.
- 3. The Professional Standards Committee will review all requests. Recommendations for support or non-support (with explanation) will be made to the President of the College. The Professional Standards Committee will notify each applicant of their recommendation no later than May 1st of the academic year.
- 4. The President shall evaluate all requests and make his/her recommendation to the Board of Trustees. The Board's decision is final. Individuals who are recommended by the President for a merit award will be notified by his/her office at the time the recommendation is approved by the Board.
- 5. An employee having exhibited special merit and/or ability may receive consideration for a bonus in the amount of 3% of his/her salary. The merit increase will not be added to the base salary.

#### **ARTICLE 11 – MISCELLANEOUS**

- A. Copies of this Agreement shall be reproduced by the Board and distributed to all Association members now employed or hereafter employed by the Board for the duration of this Agreement.
- B. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of the Agreement to any employee or group of employees shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or application shall continue in full force and effect.
- C. Except as this Agreement shall herein after provide, all terms and conditions of employment applicable on the effective date of this Agreement as established and in force on said date shall continue to be so applicable during the term of this Agreement. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, nothing contained herein shall be interpreted or applied so as to eliminate, reduce or otherwise detract from any benefits existing prior to the effective date of this Agreement.
- D. This Agreement shall be subject to ratification by the members of the Association and by the members of the Board of Trustees.

#### **ARTICLE 12 - COMPENSATION**

# ADMINISTRATIVE ASSOCIATION CONTRACT July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2016

# Criteria For Placement On Salary Schedule

The below format adopted by the Administrative Association reflects a division of salaries among the respective bargaining unit members in accordance with the specific job responsibilities, as well as the academic credentials earned to date. Five distinct levels of the salary range proposed for each position are based upon the following criteria:

## Level One

Per the minimum qualifications stipulated in the job description for every position, an administrative unit member in the Level One category will either have an Associate's Degree; the equivalent of an Associate's Degree in related work experience, or a Bachelor's Degree.

The salary ranges established for Level One positions will represent the minimum base salary for new employees hired during the term of the 2012-2016 collective bargaining agreement.

# <u>Level Two</u>

A bargaining unit member who has earned twenty-one (21) job-related credits beyond the minimum qualifications stipulated for the Level One salary range, will be entitled to placement at Level Two of the salary schedule and receive a \$700 salary increase added to base pay.

## Level Three

A bargaining unit member who has earned a job-related degree above their Level One degree will be entitled to placement at Level Three of the salary schedule and receive \$1,000 salary increase added to base pay

#### Level Four

A bargaining unit member who has earned twenty-one (21) job-related credits beyond the Level Three requirement will be entitled to placement at Level Four of the salary schedule and receive \$1,300 salary increase added to base pay.

#### Level Five

A bargaining unit member who has earned a job-related degree above their Level Three degree will be entitled to placement at Level Five of the salary schedule and receive \$1,600 salary increase added to base pay.

Salaries shall be increased as follows:

A. All base wages for employees on the payroll as of July 1, 2012 shall be increased by a sum equal to two point zero percent (2.0%).

All base wages for employees on the payroll as of July 1, 2013 shall be increased by a sum equal to two point zero percent (2.0%).

All base wages for employees on the payroll as of July 1, 2014 shall be increased by a sum equal to two point zero percent (2.0%).

All base wages for employees on the payroll as of July 1, 2015 shall be increased by a sum equal to two point zero percent (2.0%).

Consistent with Article 7, Paragraph D employees who have not been employed at the College for a full twelve (12) months prior to a scheduled salary increase will receive a prorated increase based on the number of months of service.

B. Consideration for a merit bonus will be given for exceptional performance. Seniority or satisfactory performance will not constitute grounds for or justify a merit increase.

An employee having exhibited special merit and/or ability may receive consideration for a bonus in the amount of 3% of his/her salary. The merit increase will not be added to the base salary.

It will be the exclusive prerogative of the President to determine if the recommendation for a merit bonus is to be presented to the Board of Trustees for approval. The decision of the Board will be final.

- C. A salary and level adjustment will be made upon the submission of documentation of educational attainment beyond the stipulated requirement for the employee's current salary level.
- D. No bargaining unit member will be capped during the period from July 1, 2012 June 30, 2016.
- E. All new bargaining unit positions created during the July 1, 2012 June 30, 2016 period are to be added to the Salary Schedule.

# ARTICLE 13: SALARY SCHEDULE

	ONE		TWO		THE	THREE FC		FOUR FI		VE
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS										
	20.727		20.425	<b>7</b> - 0 - 0	20.504		24.022		22.500	0.40
Administrative Assistant	28,725	55,431	29,435	56,818	30,501	58,875	31,923	61,619	33,700	65,049
Assistant Director - Distance Learning	37,045	71,514	37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118
Assistant Director - Campus Services	37,045	71,514	37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118
Associate - Transitional Studies	28,725	55,431	29,435	56,818	30,501	58,875	31,923	61,619	33,700	65,049
CIM Coordinator/Teaching Administrator	39,166	75,613	39,876	76,981	40,942	79,031	42,364	81,782	44,140	85,213
Communication Coordinator - CTEP	31,389	60,594	32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Coordinator - GED	31,389	60,594	32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Coordinator - Hospitality Program	39,166	75,613	39,876	76,981	40,942	79,031	42,364	81,782	44,140	85,213
Counselor/Coordinator - College Bound	31,389	60,594	32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Counselor/Coordinator - SCAP	34,694	66,968	35,405	68,340	36,471	70,405	37,893	73,148	39,669	76,579
Coordinator - Automotive Technology	39,166	75,613	39,876	76,981	40,942	79,031	42,364	81,782	44,140	85,213
Coordinator - Dental	29,020	56,021	29,731	57,392	30,797	59,450	32,218	62,194	33,995	65,624
Coordinator - Nursing/Pre-Nursing	28,351	54,725	29,062	56,096	30,128	58,154	31,549	60,905	33,326	64,336
Counselor - Upward Bound Academic	34,694	66,968	35,405	68,340	36,471	70,405	37,893	73,148	39,669	76,579
Director - Allied Health	43,176	83,341	43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,515	48,151	92,945
Director - Automotive Technology	43,176	83,341	43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,515	48,151	92,945
Director - Health Information Technology	43,176	83,341	43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,515	48,151	92,945
Director - Ophthalmic Technology Programs	43,176	83,341	43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,515	48,151	92,945
Director - Tutoring	43,176	83,341	43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,515	48,151	92,945
Director of Library Services	43,176	83,341	43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,523	48,151	92,951
Director - Veterinary Technology	34,694	66,968	35,405	68,340	36,471	70,405	37,893	73,148	39,669	76,579
Director - Distance Learning	34,694	66,968	35,405	68,340	36,471	70,405	37,893	73,148	39,669	76,579
Director - Medical Laboratory	34,694	66,968	35,405	68,340	36,471	70,405	37,893	73,148	39,669	76,579
Director - Prog Outreach Ed Services	43,176	83,341	43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,515	48,151	92,945

	ONE	TWO THREE		REE F	FOUR		/E
ACADEMIC AFFAIRS							
Executive Director - SCAP	43,176 83,341	43,886	84,714 44,952	86,771 46,374	4 89,515	48,151	92,945
Instructor - Food & Nutrition	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	,	35,789	69,139
Instructor - Auto Technology	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	,	35,789	69,139
Instructor - Automotive	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012		35,789	69,139
Librarian	36,381 70,239	37,092	71,604 38,158	73,661 39,580		41,356	79,835
Manager - ESA/Building & Public Safety	33,989 65,617	34,700	66,982 35,766	69,040 37,188	,	38,964	75,213
Office Manager - ESL/International Student Services	28,725 55,431	29,435	56,818 30,501	58,875 31,923		33,700	65,049
Project Coordinator - CTEP	31,389 60,594	32,100	61,965 33,166	64,024 34,58		36,364	70,197
Program Coordinator - Dental Assisting	31,389 60,594	32,100	61,965 33,166	64,024 34,58		36,364	70,197
Technician, Registration Services	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012		35,789	69,139
Specialist - Dental Radiology	30,205 58,425	30,915	59,679 31,982	61,737 33,403		35,180	67,911
Specialist - Multimedia	27,836 53,734	28,546	55,106 29,613	57,163 31,034	,	32,811	63,337
Teaching Administrator - Dental	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012		35,789	69,139
Teaching Specialist - Automotive Technology	29,613 57,163	30,323	58,536 31,389	60,594 32,81		34,587	66,767
Technician, Chemical Laboratories	27,836 53,734	28,546	55,106 29,613	57,163 31,034	,	32,811	63,337
Technician - Physical Education	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012		35,789	69,139
Technician - Dental Laboratories	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Bio Laboratories	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technical Specialist - Auto Technology	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Wellness	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Instructional Support	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Physics Laboratories	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Media	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Art Studios	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Biology Lab	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Technician - Veterinary	30,814 59,478	31,525	60,857 32,591	62,915 34,012	2 65,658	35,789	69,139
Tutor	28,725 55,431	29,435	56,818 30,501	58,875 31,923	61,619	33,700	65,049

	ONE		THREE	FOUR	FIVE	
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES						
Administrative Assistant	37,045 71,514	37,756 72,886	38,822 74,936	40,243 77,687	42,020 81,118	
Customer Service Representative - Public Safety	27,244 40,153	27,954 53,963	29,020 56,021	30,442 58,765	32,218 62,194	
Director - User Services	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Supervisor - Accounting	33,989 65,617	34,700 66,982	35,766 69,040	37,188 71,784	38,964 75,213	
Assistant Supervisor - Facilities Operations	31,389 60,594	32,100 61,965	33,166 64,024	34,587 66,767	36,364 70,197	
Director - Business Office	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - Administrative Systems	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - OIT	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Help Desk Representative	27,244 40,153	27,954 53,963	29,020 56,021	30,442 58,765	32,218 62,194	
Manager of Purchasing	37,045 71,514	37,756 72,886	38,822 74,936	40,243 77,687	42,020 81,118	
Manager - Help Desk	30,814 59,478	31,525 60,857	32,591 62,915	34,012 65,658	35,789 69,139	
Network Administrator - OIT	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Programmer/Analyst - OIT	39,166 75,613	39,876 76,981	40,942 79,031	42,364 81,782	44,140 85,213	
Senior Procurement Buyer	33,989 65,617	34,700 66,982	35,766 69,040	37,188 71,784	38,964 75,213	
Senior Program Analyst	27,836 53,734	28,546 55,106	29,613 57,163	31,034 59,907	32,811 63,337	
Supervisor - Custodial	33,989 65,617	34,700 66,982	35,766 69,040	37,188 71,784	38,964 75,213	
Technician -Information Technology	27,836 53,734	28,546 55,106	29,613 57,163	31,034 59,907	32,811 63,337	
Technician - Computer	27,836 53,734	28,546 55,106	29,613 57,163	31,034 59,907	32,811 63,337	
Technician - Auto CAAD Design	27,836 53,734	28,546 55,106	29,613 57,163	31,034 59,907	32,811 63,337	
Technician - Network	28,725 55,431	29,435 56,818	30,501 58,875	31,923 61,619	33,700 65,049	
Technician - Telecommunications	28,725 55,431	29,435 56,818	30,501 58,875	31,923 61,619	33,700 65,049	
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT						
Administrative Assistant	28,725 55,431	29,435 56,818	30,501 58,875	31,923 61,619	33,700 65,049	
Customer Service Coordinator	31,389 60,594	32,100 61,965	33,166 64,024	34,587 66,767	36,364 70,197	
Customer Service Representative	27,244 40,153	27,954 53,963	29,020 56,021	30,442 58,765	32,218 62,194	
Technician	27,244 40,153	27,954 53,963	29,020 56,021	30,442 58,765	32,218 62,194	
Director - GIPR	37,045 71,514	37,756 72,886	38,822 74,936	40,243 77,687	42,020 81,118	
Director - Occupational Skills	37,045 71,514	37,756 72,886	38,822 74,936	40,243 77,687	42,020 81,118	
Instructor Technical Assistant	30,501 58,875	31,212 60,247	32,278 62,312	33,700 65,049	35,476 68,479	
Project Coordinator	31,389 60,594	32,100 61,965	33,166 64,024	34,587 66,767	36,364 70,197	
Senior Account Executive	33,989 65,617	34,700 66,982	35,766 69,040	37,188 71,784	38,964 75,213	

	ONE	TV	VO	THR	EE FOUR		UR	FIVE	
INSTITUTIONAL ADVANCEMENT									
Assistant Director Camden Campus	33,989 69	5,617 34,700	66,982	35,766	69,040	37,188	71,784	38,964	75,213
Assistant Director - Athletics	37,045 7	1,514 37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118
Associate	27,244 40	0,153 27,954	53,963	29,020	56,021	30,442	58,765	32,218	62,194
Athletic Coordinator/ Coaches' Assistant	28,725 5	5,431 29,435	56,818	30,501	58,875	31,923	61,619	33,700	65,049
Coordinator - Communications Producation	28,725 5	5,431 29,435	56,818	30,501	58,875	31,923	61,619	33,700	65,049
Coordinator - Special Events	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Director - Adult Basic Skills	37,045 7	1,514 37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118
Director - Athletics	43,176 83	3,341 43,886	84,714	44,952	86,771	46,374	89,515	48,151	92,945
Director - Gateway to College	39,166 7:	5,613 39,876	76,981	40,942	79,031	42,364	81,782	44,140	85,213
Director - Publications and Production	34,694 60	6,968 35,405	68,340	36,471	70,405	37,893	73,148	39,669	76,579
External Resources Development Associate	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Grants Development Specialist	29,020 50	6,021 29,731	57,392	30,797	59,450	32,218	62,194	33,995	65,624
Graphic Designer	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Instructor - Adult Basic Skills	30,814 59	9,478 31,525	60,857	32,591	62,915	34,012	65,658	35,789	69,139
Marketing Specialist/Auxiliary Services	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Project Coordinator	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Specialist - Gateway to College	30,814 59	9,478 31,525	60,857	32,591	62,915	34,012	65,658	35,789	69,139
Specialist - Senior Appl/SQL Prog II	27,836 53	3,734 28,546	55,106	29,613	57,163	31,034	59,907	32,811	63,337
Technician - Production	27,836 53	3,734 28,546	55,106	29,613	57,163	31,034	59,907	32,811	63,337
Web Specialist	29,020 50	6,021 29,731	57,392	30,797	59,450	32,218	62,194	33,995	65,624
ENROLLMENT AND STUDENT SERVICES									
Administrative Assistant	28,725 5	5,431 29,435	56,818	30,501	58,875	31,923	61,619	33,700	65,049
Assistant to the Dean	37,045 7	1,514 37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118
Assistant Director - Financial Aid	33,989 63	5,617 34,700	66,982	35,766	69,040	37,188	71,784	38,964	75,213
Assistant Director - Testing	37,045 7	1,514 37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118
Coordinator - Academic Advising	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Coordinator - Disability Services	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Coordinator - Student Employment	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Coordinator - Testing	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Coordinator - Transitional Education Program	31,389 60	0,594 32,100	61,965	33,166	64,024	34,587	66,767	36,364	70,197
Counselor - Financial Aid	37,045 7	1,514 37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118
Counselor - Financial Aid/VA Services Advisor	37,045 7	1,514 37,756	72,886	38,822	74,936	40,243	77,687	42,020	81,118

	ONE	TWO	THREE	FOUR	FIVE	
ENROLLMENT AND STUDENT SERVICES						
Counselor/Evening Manager	37,045 71,514	37,756 72,886	38,822 74,936	40,243 77,687	42,020 81,118	
Director - Financial Aid	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - Transfer Services	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - Testing	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - Special Financial Aid Services	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - Disability Services	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - ESL/International Students	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - Admission & Registration Services	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Director - Student System Records	43,176 83,341	43,886 84,714	44,952 86,771	46,374 89,515	48,151 92,945	
Enrollment Services Associate	27,244 40,153	27,954 53,963	29,020 56,021	30,442 58,765	32,218 62,194	
Manager - Academic Scheduling	33,989 65,617	34,700 66,982	35,766 69,040	37,188 71,784	38,964 75,213	
Manager - Financial Aid)	33,989 65,617	34,700 66,982	35,766 69,040	37,188 71,784	38,964 75,213	
Student Advisor	29,613 57,163	30,323 58,536	31,389 60,594	32,811 63,337	34,587 66,767	
Student Advisor - E Advisor	29,613 57,163	30,323 58,536	31,389 60,594	32,811 63,337	34,587 66,767	
Student Advisor - EOF	29,613 57,163	30,323 58,536	31,389 60,594	32,811 63,337	34,587 66,767	
Student Advisor Specialist	37,045 71,514	37,756 72,886	38,822 74,936	40,243 77,687	42,020 81,118	
Technician - Financial Aid	29,020 56,021	29,731 57,392	30,797 59,450	32,218 62,194	33,995 65,624	
Technician - Registration Services	29,020 56,021	29,731 57,392	30,797 59,450	32,218 62,194	33,995 65,624	
Technician - Testing Lab	29,020 56,021	29,731 57,392	30,797 59,450	32,218 62,194	33,995 65,624	

# **ARTICLE 14 - DURATION OF AGREEMENT**

This agreement including its Appendices shall be effective as of July 1, 2012 and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2016. This agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated. If no successor agreement has been reached prior to June 30, 2016, applicable PERC regulations will be observed.

# **APPENDICES**

# Appendix I: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE FORM

NAME:
TITLE:
LENGTH OF TIME IN CURRENT POSITION:
DATE FILED:
REASON FOR GRIEVANCE:
DATE REVIEWED BY ASSOCIATION GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:
HAS MATTER BEEN DISCUSSED WITH APPROPRIATE DEAN OR SUPERVISOR? (Y/N)
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
DATE:
SIGNATURE OF GRIEVANT SIGNATURE OF ASSOCIATION

# Appendix II: COVER SHEET

NAME OF APPLICANT:			
PRESENT TIT	LE:		
RECOMMENDATION FOR (Circle One)			
1.	Merit Award		
2.	Sabbatical		
3.	Salary Adjustment		
APPLICATION CHECKLIST			
1.	Cover Sheet (w/signatures)		
2.	Narrative		
3.	Letter Of Recommendation		
4.	Letter Of Intent To Immediate Supervisor/Dean (Sabbatical Only)		
SUBMITTED BY:			
DATE:			
RECEIVED BY IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR:  DATE:			
<i>D</i> 111 <i>D</i>			
RECEIVED BY DEAN:			
DATE.			

# Appendix III: <u>LETTER OF INTENT TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION</u>

Recommendation for (circle one)				
	1.	Merit Award		
	2.	Salary Adjustment		
A recommendation for the above category will be submitted for:				
		by		
DATE:				
PLEASE COMPLETE THIS FORM AND RETURN TO THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS COMMITTEE BY THE DEADLINES SPECIFIED IN THE GUIDELINES.				

# **Camden County College**

# Association of Administrative Personnel

**BOARD OF TRUSTEES** 

**NEGOTIATING TEAM** 

Sandee G. Vogelson
Vice Chairperson

Patricia Chappell
President

Hazel T. Nimpio Secretary

Louis F. Cappelli, Sr.

Treasurer

Jeffrey Bradley
Vice President

Brian Higgins Bargaining Team Member

Kevin Schmidt Bargaining Team Member

**Camden County College** 

PRESIDENT

Maureen Reidenauer Bargaining Team Member

Dr. Raymond Yannuzzi

Date Signed